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F 000 INITIAL COMMENTS F 000

 On January 27, 2022,  a standard abbreviated 
survey was completed at your facility to conduct a 
complaint investigation. Your facility was found to 
be NOT in compliance with 42 CFR Part 483, 
Requirements for Long Term Care Facilities.

The following complaints were found to be 
SUBSTANTIATED: 
H5427065C (MN80188), H5427066C (MN79937), 
H5427071C (MN80417). However, due to actions 
taken by the facility prior to the survey, NO 
deficiencies were cited.  

The following complaints were found to be 
UNSUBSTANTIATED: 
H5427067C (MN79700), H5427068C (MN78699), 
H5427069C (MN78092), H5427070C (MN76622). 
However, a related deficiency was cited at F888.

The facility's plan of correction (POC) will serve 
as your allegation of compliance upon the 
Departments acceptance. Because you are 
enrolled in ePOC, your signature is not required 
at the bottom of the first page of the CMS-2567 
form. Your electronic submission of the POC will 
be used as verification of compliance.

Upon receipt of an acceptable electronic POC, an 
onsite revisit of your facility may be conducted to 
validate that substantial compliance with the 
regulations has been attained.

 

F 888 COVID-19 Vaccination of Facility Staff
CFR(s): 483.80(i)(1)-(3)(i)-(x)

§483.80(i)  
COVID-19 Vaccination of facility staff.  The facility 
must develop and implement policies and 

F 888 2/17/22
SS=D
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Any deficiency statement ending with an asterisk (*) denotes a deficiency which the institution may be excused from correcting providing it is determined that 
other safeguards provide sufficient protection to the patients. (See instructions.)  Except for nursing homes, the findings stated above are disclosable 90 days 
following the date of survey whether or not a plan of correction is provided.  For nursing homes, the above findings and plans of correction are disclosable 14 
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program participation.
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F 888 Continued From page 1 F 888
procedures to ensure that all staff are fully 
vaccinated for COVID-19.  For purposes of this 
section, staff are considered fully vaccinated if it 
has been 2 weeks or more since they completed 
a primary vaccination series for COVID-19.  The 
completion of a primary vaccination series for 
COVID-19 is defined here as the administration of 
a single-dose vaccine, or the administration of all 
required doses of a multi-dose vaccine.

§483.80(i)(1)  Regardless of clinical responsibility 
or resident contact, the policies and procedures 
must apply to the following facility staff, who 
provide any care, treatment, or other services for 
the facility and/or its residents: 
(i)  Facility employees;
(ii)  Licensed practitioners;
(iii) Students, trainees, and volunteers; and
(iv)  Individuals who provide care, treatment, or 
other services for the facility and/or its residents, 
under contract or by other arrangement.

§483.80(i)(2)  The policies and procedures of this 
section do not apply to the following facility staff:
(i) Staff who exclusively provide telehealth or 
telemedicine services outside of the facility setting 
and who do not have any direct contact with 
residents and other staff specified in paragraph (i)
(1) of this section; and
(ii)  Staff who provide support services for the 
facility that are performed exclusively outside of 
the facility setting and who do not have any direct 
contact with residents and other staff specified in 
paragraph (i)(1) of this section.

§483.80(i)(3)  The policies and procedures must 
include, at a minimum, the following components:
(i)  A process for ensuring all staff specified in 
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F 888 Continued From page 2 F 888
paragraph (i)(1) of this section (except for those 
staff who have pending requests for, or who have 
been granted, exemptions to the vaccination 
requirements of this section, or those staff for 
whom COVID-19 vaccination must be temporarily 
delayed, as recommended by the CDC, due to 
clinical precautions and considerations) have 
received, at a minimum, a single-dose COVID-19 
vaccine, or the first dose of the primary 
vaccination series for a multi-dose COVID-19 
vaccine prior to staff providing any care, 
treatment, or other services for the facility and/or 
its residents;
(iii)  A process for ensuring the implementation of 
additional precautions, intended to mitigate the 
transmission and spread of COVID-19, for all staff 
who are not fully vaccinated for COVID-19;
(iv) A process for tracking and securely 
documenting the COVID-19 vaccination status of 
all staff specified in paragraph (i)(1) of this 
section;
(v) A process for tracking and securely 
documenting the COVID-19 vaccination status of 
any staff who have obtained any booster doses 
as recommended by the CDC;  
(vi) A process by which staff may request an 
exemption from the staff COVID-19 vaccination 
requirements based on an applicable Federal law; 
(vii) A process for tracking and securely 
documenting information provided by those staff 
who have requested, and for whom the facility 
has granted, an exemption from the staff 
COVID-19 vaccination requirements; 
(viii) A process for ensuring that all 
documentation, which confirms recognized 
clinical contraindications to COVID-19 vaccines 
and which supports staff requests for medical 
exemptions from vaccination, has been signed 
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F 888 Continued From page 3 F 888
and dated by a licensed practitioner, who is not 
the individual requesting the exemption, and who 
is acting within their respective scope of practice 
as defined by, and in accordance with, all 
applicable State and local laws, and for further 
ensuring that such documentation contains:
(A) All information specifying which of the 
authorized COVID-19 vaccines are clinically 
contraindicated for the staff member to receive 
and the recognized clinical reasons for the 
contraindications; and 
(B) A statement by the authenticating practitioner 
recommending that the staff member be 
exempted from the facility's COVID-19 
vaccination requirements for staff based on the 
recognized clinical contraindications;
(ix) A process for ensuring the tracking and 
secure documentation of the vaccination status of 
staff for whom COVID-19 vaccination must be 
temporarily delayed, as recommended by the 
CDC, due to clinical precautions and 
considerations, including, but not limited to, 
individuals with acute illness secondary to 
COVID-19, and individuals who received 
monoclonal antibodies or convalescent plasma 
for COVID-19 treatment; and
(x) Contingency plans for staff who are not fully 
vaccinated for COVID-19.

Effective 60 Days After Publication:
§483.80(i)(3)(ii)  A process for ensuring that all 
staff specified in paragraph (i)(1) of this section 
are fully vaccinated for COVID-19, except for 
those staff who have been granted exemptions to 
the vaccination requirements of this section, or 
those staff for whom COVID-19 vaccination must 
be temporarily delayed, as recommended by the 
CDC, due to clinical precautions and 
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F 888 Continued From page 4 F 888
considerations;
This REQUIREMENT  is not met as evidenced 
by:
 Based on interview and document review the 
facility failed to ensure all staff received at least 
one dose of COVID-19 vaccine, had pending 
request for, had a qualifying exemption, or 
temporary delay as recommended by the CDC 
prior to staff providing any care, treatment, or 
other services for the facility and/or its residents. 
The facility had 6.9% of staff whom were not 
vaccinated without exemption/delay and had no 
residents that were COVID positive in the facility.     

Findings include:

The facility's COVID-19 Staff Vaccination Status 
for Providers, provided 1/27/22, indicated the 
facility had a total of 387 staff; 22 partially 
vaccinated staff; 254 completely vaccinated staff; 
75 staff granted exemption; 10 temporary 
delay/new hire staff; and 26 staff not vaccinated 
without exemption/delay. This indicated there 
were 6.9% staff that were not vaccinated. 

During the entrance conference on the morning 
of 1/27/22, the administrator stated 0 residents 
were COVID positive. 

On 1/27/22, at 1:55 p.m. the administrator said 26 
staff were not vaccinated but remained on the 
schedule (or 6.9% of staff), and therefore, 100% 
of all staff had not received at least one dose of 
COVID-19 vaccine, or had a pending request for, 
or had been granted a qualifying exemption, or 
were identified as having a temporary delay as 
recommended by the CDC. However, the facility 
had a plan to become 100% vaccinated.

 1) The facility will establish additional 
procedures to ensure 100% compliance 
with the CMS COVID-19 Vaccination 
Mandate.  This has the potential to affect 
all residents of the facility via infection 
control.

2) The facility has made the following 
changes to ensure 100% compliance with 
the CMS COVID-19 Vaccination Mandate: 
a) Reviewed and revised the facility’s 
“COVID-19 Vaccine Mandate Policy”; b) 
identified the 6.9% of staff who were out 
of compliance with the mandate.  Staff 
that did not receive the first dose of 
vaccine or did not submit an exemption 
request were placed on administrative 
leave until they were following the 
mandate; c) Administration and Human 
Resources developed new procedures to 
ensure compliance for new hires, which 
includes discussing the mandate with job 
applicants and delaying orientation for 
those who are identified as not complying.

3) The facility will conduct daily audits 
(x1 week) and weekly audits (x2) to 
ensure staff compliance with the CMS 
COVID-19 Vaccine Mandate.  The Human 
Resources Director (or designee) will be 
responsible for completion of these audits.
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F 888 Continued From page 5 F 888
The facility's COVID-19 Vaccine Mandate Policy, 
updated 1/27/22, indicated "all facility staff are 
required to have received at least one dose of an 
FDA-authorized COVID-19 vaccine by January 
27, 2022, and the final dose of a primary 
vaccination series by February 28, 2022." The 
policy further indicated "staff may be eligible for a 
medical or religious exemption but must meet the 
criteria for the exemption to qualify".
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 2 000 Initial Comments

         *****ATTENTION******

    NH LICENSING CORRECTION ORDER

In accordance with Minnesota Statute, section 
144A.10, this correction order has been issued 
pursuant to a survey.  If, upon reinspection, it is 
found that the deficiency or deficiencies cited 
herein are not corrected, a fine for each violation 
not corrected shall be assessed in accordance 
with a schedule of fines promulgated by rule of 
the Minnesota Department of Health.

Determination of whether a violation has been 
corrected requires compliance with all 
requirements of the rule provided at the tag 
number and MN Rule number indicated below.  
When a rule contains several items, failure to 
comply with any of the items will be considered 
lack of compliance.  Lack of compliance upon 
re-inspection with any item of multi-part rule will 
result in the assessment of a fine even if the item 
that was violated during the initial inspection was 
corrected. 

You may request a hearing on any assessments 
that may result from non-compliance with these 
orders provided that a written request is made to 
the Department within 15 days of receipt of a 
notice of assessment for non-compliance. 

INITIAL COMMENTS:

 2 000

On January 27, 2022, a complaint survey was 
conducted at your facility by surveyors from the 
Minnesota Department of Health (MDH). Your 
facility was found IN compliance with the MN 
State Licensure. 

The following complaints were found to be 
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 2 000Continued From page 1 2 000

SUBSTANTIATED:
H5427065C (MN80188), H5427066C (MN79937), 
H5427071C (MN80417). However, no citations 
were issued. 

The following complaints were found to be 
UNSUBSTANTIATED: 
H5427067C (MN79700), H5427068C (MN78699), 
H5427069C (MN78092), H5427070C (MN76622). 

The Minnesota Department of Health is 
documenting the State Licensing Correction 
Orders using Federal software.
The facility is enrolled in ePOC and therefore a 
signature is not required at the bottom of the first 
page of state form. Although no plan of correction 
is required, it is required that the facility 
acknowledge receipt of the electronic documents.
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